
BURRILLVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
Meeting Place: Jesse M. Smith Library, Community Room 
Meeting Date:  September 18, 2012 
 
Members Present: 

James Langlois, Chairman  Edward Bonczek 
 Jeffrey J. Barr, Vice Chairmen David Fontaine 
Mark Brizard Royal Laurent, Alternate Member 
  

 
Members Absent: 

  
 
Staff/Consultants Present: 

Michael C. Wood, Secretary Scott A. Gibbs, NEEDS, Inc. 
Tim Kane, General Legal Counsel Tom Kravitz, Town Planner 

 
Others: 

Nancy Binns, Pres., Town Council Wallace Lees V.P., Town Council 
Edward Blanchard, Town Council Margaret Dudley, Town Council 
Kevin Heitke, Town Council David Place, Town Council 
Steven Rawson, Town Council  

 
 
Call to Order 
James Langlois called the meeting to order at 7:05.  Langlois indicated the purpose of the 
meeting is to provide the Town Council with an update regarding the BRA’s Program of Work.  
Langlois wanted to remind the Agency members that they do have a regularly scheduled meeting 
for next Tuesday, September 25. Also the BRA will be participating in Community Day and will 
have a table set up.   
 
 
Old Business, Invoices, Correspondence 
None 
 
Program of Work 
Langlois welcomed the Town Council members to hear an overview of the Agency’s Program of 
Work.  Langlois stated this is a workshop and thus the Agency will not be open for public 
comments.  Langlois turned the meeting over to Tom Kravitz.   
 



Kravitz provided a PowerPoint presentation beginning with the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment 
District and ending with the Downtown Pascoag Redevelopment District.  Projects highlighted 
included the Jesse Smith Public Library, Clock Tower Mill redevelopment, and canoe launch in 
the Stillwater Redevelopment District.  Also highlighted was the new CVS store and plaza; road 
and infrastructure improvements; walking/bike path; Riverwalk; Gonyea Park; Royal Laurent’s 
building; and the WellOne projects in the Downtown Pascoag Redevelopment District.  
Focused on what still needs to be done, including the Mobil Station property.   
 
Langlois stated that there have been significant improvements in the redevelopment areas; 
however, there remains much to be done.  Langlois moved into discussing the scope in the 
BRA’s Program of Work.  The following items were discussed. 
(1) Pascoag: referenced all the design activities which are intended to enhance the traffic and 

pedestrian flow on Route 107.  Wood stated that the projects are now on the State’s 
funded list.  Nancy Binns raised issues about traffic problems coming from Church Street 
by CVS.  Wood stated that the developer/owner still argues that once all traffic 
improvements are completed and traffic patterns are set, the issue will be mitigated.  
Kevin Heitke inquired about the protocol if a private party wanted to do something that 
augments the bike path like a vendor or bike rental.  Langlois stated that the bike path is 
not in the redevelopment district, and an issue regarding a vendor license or zoning 
would be taken up by the Town Council.   

(2) Acquisition of Properties in Pascoag: Langlois stated that the Nardelli properties and 
Mobil Station would be discussed in Executive Session. 

(3) Acquisition of Properties in Stillwater: There are some properties for consideration that 
will be taken up in the future depending when the market improves.  Wood referenced the 
UFO property and the fact that it is privately owned, and that they are struggling to define 
a use that is consistent with what the council has previously approved.  Wood also stated 
that the gym property is for sale.  There was discussion about the Niko’s property/former 
car dealership.  Langlois stated that the building is in a prime location given what has 
gone on around the property. 

(4) WellOne Community Healthcare: The Agency has an ongoing dialogue with WellOne 
regarding complimentary businesses that could potentially locate in Downtown Pascoag.   

(5) Riverwalk Interpretive Signage: BRA hopes to have the signage installed once the 
riverwalk is further built out.   Wood stated that there has been some discussion to 
consider the extension of the riverwalk further to the Pascoag Grammar School.  Langlois 
also stated the desire to connect the bike path with the riverwalk.   

(6) Business Improvement District: Wood provided an overview of the function of a 
Business Improvement District.  Wood said that it is difficult to establish a District given 
the lack of scale currently in Stillwater Mill and Pascoag.   

(7) Rubbish and Recycling Plan for the Pascoag Merchants: Royal Laurent explained that the 
problem is there is no place to put rubbish containers although it is better with the new 
containers and automated pickup.  Langlois indicated that they have discussed using a 
community trash facility on the public parking lot.  Various Town Councilors suggested 
options for a community dumpster.  Binns suggested two locations to serve as options for 
merchants. 



(8) Property Management in Stillwater: Langlois explained they have already started this by 
addressing the lighting issue.  Improvement to open space and landscaping has been 
addressed by installing the irrigation system and working with the Conservation 
Commission for a tree planting plan.  Wood stated that Neighborworks has approached 
the Redevelopment Agency to make improvements to the adjacent open area for some 
playground and garden improvements using their resources. 

(9) Pavilion / Farmers Market:  Langlois stated that it is complete and available for rental.   
(10) Market and Tourism: Langlois stated that the business directory has been completed. 

Kravitz provided an overview of the Geotourism project including the Facebook page.  
Short daytrips have been developed to compliment the Facebook page.  Kravitz 
referenced one trip just organized with Conway Tours.  Kravitz stated that they hope they 
can get 50 people to sign up for the first tour and then build from that with additional day 
trips.   
 
Wood stated that it is important to maintain good communication with the Town Council 
to ensure that the planning and resources are available to execute the redevelopment plan 
consistent with the Town Council’s expectations.  Langlois stated that the first time in a 
long time, things are changing in Burrillville. Langlois stated that in order to attract 
investors, it is necessary to get Burrillville residents excited about what is going on.   
 
Langlois requested a vote from Agency members to go into Executive Session with 
Langlois, Barr, Fontaine, Brizard and Bonczek all voting in favor.  
 
The public meeting reconvened noting that the minutes of the Executive Session will be 
sealed and that no votes were taken in Executive Session.  Bonczek made a motion to 
seal the minutes and adjourn the regular meeting.  Barr seconded the motion and the vote 
in favor was unanimous.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:45. 

 
 
 
_____________________________                               _____________________ _ 
Michael C. Wood, Secretary     Date: 
 
 
 
    Date filed with Town Clerk: _________________________  


